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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

Civil Action No. 11-cv-02051-CMA-MEH

FIRST DESCENTS, Inc.
a Colorado non-profit corporation

Plaintiff,

V.

EDDIE BAUER LICENSING SERVICES LLC
a Delaware limited liability company

and

EDDIE BAUER LLC
a Delaware limited liability company

Defendants

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff First Descents, Inc. (“First Descents” or “Plaintiff”) for its First Amended
Complaint against Defendants Eddie Bauer Licensing Services LLC, and Eddie Bauer LLC
(collectively, “Eddie Bauer” or “Defendant’) allege as follows:

Nature of the Action

1. In this action, First Descents seeks injunctive and monetary relief for acts of
trademark infringement and unfair competition under the laws of the United States, Title 15,
United States Code; and trademark infringement and unfair competition under the common law

of the state of Colorado.
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The Parties

2. Plaintiff First Descents is a Colorado non-profit corporation having its principal
place of business at 6000 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Suite 120, Greenwood Village, Colorado
80111.

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant Eddie Bauer Licensing Services LLC is a
Delaware limited liability company having a principal place of business at 10401 Northeast 8"
Street, Suite 500, Bellevue, Washington 98004.

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant Eddie Bauer LLC is a Delaware limited
liability company having a principal place of business at 10401 Northeast 8" Street, Suite 500,
Bellevue, Washington 98004.

Jurisdiction and Venue

5. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331, 1332, 1338 and 1367, and 15 U.S.C. § 1121. The amount in controversy exceeds the
sum or value of $75,000.

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction in this matter because Defendant offers for
sale and sells in this District merchandise branded with the infringing marks that are the subject
of this action, and has constitutionally sufficient contacts with Colorado to make personal
jurisdiction proper in this District.

7. Venue is proper within this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c).

Background Facts

Plaintiff’s FIRST DESCENTS" Mark

8. The FIRST DESCENTS®™ camp experience was founded in 2001 as an adventure

therapy whitewater kayaking camp for young adults fighting and surviving cancer. The name
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“First Descents” was chosen for the camps because in kayaking and skiing, a “first descent” is
the first time anyone has successfully navigated a particular river or skied a particular slope.
Brad Ludden, the founder of First Descents and world class professional kayaker with over 100
kayaking first descents throughout the world, used the term with the kayaking camp experience
for young adults fighting or surviving cancer because the camp provided the opportunity for the
campers to experience the outdoor activity for their first time - and therefore, their own personal
“first descents.” The camps have grown to include rock climbing and other outdoor adventures
such as mountaineering and surfing.

9. FIRST DESCENTS®™ camps began in Colorado, and in 2011 took place in eight
states and in Canada. During the FIRST DESCENTS® camp experience, young adult cancer
survivors are empowered through conquering legitimate outdoor challenges in which they push
their limits and face their fears, and by doing so, are able to gain confidence, a sense of control, a
new identity outside of cancer, and the self-reliance they lost to cancer - all within a community
of other young adult survivors and fighters. Each camp in the FIRST DESCENTS® program is
limited to 15 campers, helping to ensure individualized care, medical attention and an intimate
experience with fellow cancer survivors. The FIRST DESCENTS® programs are available to
young adults with cancer regardless of their financial means; meals, accommodations and

program activities are provided free of charge, including travel scholarships, when needed.
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10. First Descents owns U.S. Service Mark Registration No. 2,695,260 for the mark
FIRST DESCENTS® that issued March 11, 2003 for a motivational kayak sports camp for
people with cancer. The first camp occurred in August 2001. A copy of the registration
certificate for the FIRST DESCENTS® mark (the “FIRST DESCENTS® Mark”) is attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

11. Since 2001, First Descents has been using its FIRST DESCENTS® Mark in
providing and promoting the camp programs, and on various items of apparel that have been
provided to participants, counselors and volunteers in the camp programs, worn by adventure
athletes raising awareness of the organization, and sold to supporters of the non-profit to
generate funds for the organization. In the ten years since the first camp program, thousands of
items bearing the FIRST DESCENTS® Mark have been distributed to campers, counselors,
volunteers and supporters. First Descents’ campers have come from all fifty states, and
marketing efforts for the FIRST DESCENTS®™ programs have been directed nationwide and
internationally.

12. As a result of a decade of the activities of the committed individuals associated

with FIRST DESCENTS®™ camps, the FIRST DESCENTS® Mark has become recognized and



Case 1:11-cv-02051-CMA-MEH Document 6 Filed 08/10/11 USDC Colorado Page 5 of 19

associated with outdoor adventure experiences made available to young adult cancer fighters and
survivors to help them reclaim their lives and connect with others having the same fight against
cancer.

13.  First Descents has sold various items of branded FIRST DESCENTS apparel
nationwide as a means of raising operational revenue for the camps. Certain apparel has been
made available for sale to the public, and has been featured for sale on First Descents’ website at
<www.firstdescents.org>.

14.  On September 23, 2008, First Descents filed U.S. serial no. 77/576914 for the
mark FIRST DESCENTS for clothing items in Class 25. The first use date included in that
application was July 1, 2001, the date when apparel was distributed in interstate commerce to the
participants in the first camp program for adults fighting cancer.

15.  However, First Descent’s application for the mark FIRST DESCENTS for
apparel was suspended by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) on December 22,
2008 as a result of trademark applications that had been filed by Eddie Bauer for the marks
FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT for various outdoor gear and accessories, including
items of apparel.

16. On July 27, 2011, the USPTO issued a refusal of registration for First Descent’s
application for the FIRST DESCENTS mark that had been in use for over ten years. The USPTO
citied Eddie Bauer’s U.S. Reg. No. 3,970,936 for the mark FIRST DESCENT on the ground of
likely consumer confusion between the sources of each party’s branded apparel.

17.  Defendant provided no dates of first use of the marks FIRST ASCENT and
FIRST DESCENT when it initially filed its trademark applications with the USPTO. Instead,
Defendant’s applications for the FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT marks were filed as

“intent to use” applications prior to any actual use of these marks.

5
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18. At the time of Defendant’s USPTO trademark filings in 2008, First Descents had
been conducting its cancer camp programs and providing branded apparel under the FIRST
DESCENTS®™ Mark in interstate commerce for over seven years.

19.  Defendant’s Registration for the FIRST ASCENT mark issued in March 2011
and indicates that Defendant claims first use of the mark FIRST ASCENT in April 2009 - eight
years after Plaintiff provided branded FIRST DESCENTS apparel to its first campers.

20.  Defendant’s Registration for the FIRST DESCENT mark issued in May 2011 and
indicates that Defendant claims first use of the mark FIRST DESCENT in November 2009 -

eight years after Plaintiff provided branded FIRST DESCENTS apparel to its first campers.

Defendant’s Activities Using the Infringing FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT Marks

21.  Defendant filed on April 10, 2008, USPTO application serial no. 77/444768 for
the mark FIRST ASCENT for apparel in Class 25. On January 14, 2011 Defendant submitted
filings to the USPTO claiming first use of the mark with the clothing items in April 2009. This
application issued as U.S. Reg. No. 3,934,798 on March 22, 2011.

22.  Defendant filed on June 2, 2008, USPTO application serial no. 77/488968 for the
mark FIRST DESCENT for various outdoor goods, including apparel. On July 28, 2008, the
USPTO issued an office action relating to Defendant’s FIRST DESCENT application in which it
advised Defendant that two “intent to use” applications, serial nos. 77/452342 and 77/452349
(which application was later expressly abandoned) had been previously filed on April 18, 2008
by American Recreation Products, Inc. (“American Recreation”), a corporation located in St.
Louis, Missouri, for the mark FIRST ASCENT for tents and for clothing, respectively.

23. American Recreation also owned, at the time of its two FIRST ASCENT filings

on April 18, 2008, a federal trademark registration for the mark FIRST ASCENT for tote bags,
6
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back packs and sleeping bags that had issued May 9, 1989 -- but this registration did not include
clothing or items of apparel.

24. As indicated in American Recreation’s U.S. Reg. No. 1,538,160 for FIRST
ASCENT, the first use dates of the mark with tote bags, back packs and sleeping bags was 1988.
American Recreation did not own a federal trademark registration for the mark FIRST
DESCENT or FIRST DESCENTS.

25. The USPTO office action relating to Defendant’s FIRST DESCENT application
indicated to Defendant that “there may be a likelihood of confusion under Trademark Act
Section 2(d) between applicant’s mark [FIRST DESCENT] and the referenced marks [FIRST
ASCENT] ” in those prior filed intent to use applications.

26.  Defendant, as shown in the online records of the USPTO, purports to have
obtained assignment of American Recreation’s application serial no. 77/452342 on or about July
28, 2008, thereby enabling Defendant to overcome rejection of its application by the USPTO
based on the FIRST ASCENT applications previously filed by American Recreation. (See
USPTO assignment records at the following link showing that a document purporting to assign
rights to Eddie Bauer on or about July 28, 2008 was recorded on April 3, 2009:
http://assignments.uspto.gov/assignments/q?db=tm&qt=sno&reel=&frame=&sno=77452342).

27.  As shown in the online records of the USPTO, a document purporting to assign
Reg. No. 1,538,160 for the mark FIRST ASCENT to Eddie Bauer from American Recreation on
or about July 28, 2008 was also recorded on April 3, 2009. (See USPTO assignment records at
the following link showing that a document purporting to assign rights to Eddie Bauer:
http://assignments.uspto.gov/assignments/q?db=tm&qt=sno&reel=&frame=&sno=73741412).

28.  Inexplicably, the assignment documents purporting to show that Eddie Bauer

acquired American Recreation’s U.S. Reg. No. 1,538,160 for the mark FIRST ASCENT dating
7
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back to use in 1988 for tote bags, back packs and sleeping bags (but not for items of apparel)
was not recorded at the USPTO until April 3, 2009, almost a year after the execution date of
record of July 28, 2008.

29.  Upon information and belief, Eddie Bauer’s ownership of American Recreation’s
U.S. Reg. No. 1,538,160 for the mark FIRST ASCENT would permit Eddie Bauer to claim
“tacking” onto the original registrant’s first use date of 1988 for tote bags, back packs and
sleeping bags provided that certain legal requirements were met.

30.  Upon information and belief, Eddie Bauer purports to have complied with the
legal requirements for tacking, and now asserts that it owns U.S. Reg. No. 1,538,160 for the
mark FIRST ASCENT for tote bags, back packs and sleeping bags and that its trademark rights
legally date back to 1988.

31.  However, Defendant cannot claim that any trademark rights in apparel, or any
goods unrelated to tote bags, back packs and sleeping bags, date back to 1988 even if it has
complied with the legal requirements of tacking with respect to U.S. Reg. No. 1,538,160 for the
mark FIRST ASCENT.

32. On October 14, 2010 Defendant submitted filings to the USPTO in serial no.
77/488968 claiming first use in November 2009 for the mark FIRST DESCENT only with items
of apparel.

33.  Defendant was able to overcome any future refusal of registration based on a
likelihood of confusion between its use of FIRST DESCENT and the referenced American
Recreation mark FIRST ASCENT by acquiring the cited American Recreation FIRST ASCENT
application serial no. 77/452342. Consequently, Defendant’s application for FIRST DESCENT

issued as U.S. Reg. No. 3,970,936 on May 31, 2011.
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34.  Defendant filed on August 15, 2008, USPTO application serial no. 77/548031 for
the mark FIRST ASCENT (with design letter A) for various outdoor goods, including apparel.
On April 25, 2011, Defendant submitted filings to the USPTO claiming first use of the mark
only with the items of apparel and water bottles in April 2009, and April 2011, respectively. This
application issued as U.S. Reg. No. 3,974,941 on June 7, 2011.

35. Upon information and belief, Defendant was aware of the FIRST DESCENTS"
outdoor camp experience for young adults fighting cancer when Defendant filed its trademark
applications in 2008 for FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT.

36. Upon information and belief, Defendant was aware of Plaintiff’s 2001 use of its
FIRST DESCENTS® Mark on its apparel when Defendant filed its trademark applications in
2008 for FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT.

37.  Defendant launched promotion and sales of outdoor clothing and other items
under the FIRST ASCENT mark sometime in 2009, well after the time that First Descents began
operating its adventure therapy cancer camps and providing FIRST DESCENTS branded
clothing items to camp participants, camp counselors, volunteers and supporters. Defendant
conducted its promotional activities at many of the same industry events and venues where First
Descents had maintained a presence for years prior to Defendant’s participation at those same
venues.

38.  Defendant is not a corporate sponsor or a corporate partner of First Descents.

39. Although First Descents had prior discussions with Eddie Bauer about an
arrangement between the companies to create revenue to benefit the FIRST DESCENTS®
programs, no agreement was reached.

40.  None of the proceeds from sales of Defendant’s line of FIRST DESCENT or

FIRST ASCENT apparel or other outdoor-related items benefits First Descents.
9
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41. On or about October 2010, First Descents became aware that Defendant had
launched a line of “ski gear” using the mark FIRST DESCENT. An advertisement for FIRST
ASCENT goods featured text stating that “the obvious next step was our new First Descent™
ski gear.” Exhibit B hereto (SKI magazine ad with emphasis to show Defendant’s use).

42.  Despite the prior discussions with Eddie Bauer in September and October 2010
about a potential partnership in which Plaintiff expressed the need to differentiate its brand from
Eddie Bauer due to ongoing consumer confusion, Defendant made no mention of its decision to
launch apparel under the virtually identical FIRST DESCENT brand.

43, On October 26, 2010, a member of the board of directors of First Descents
contacted Defendant to express its concern about Defendant’s use of the FIRST DESCENT
mark on its product lines, and reminded Defendant that Plaintiff had been using its FIRST
DESCENTS®™ Mark with its camps and on its apparel since 2001.

44.  The First Descents board member also advised Defendant that there had already
been actual confusion about a relationship between Defendant and First Descents. The board
member advised Defendant in that same email communication that it had been planning an
expansion of its FIRST DESCENTS apparel sales to benefit First Descents and the young adult
cancer community that its serves.

45.  Indeed, press coverage of FIRST DESCENTS and its founder, pro kayaker Brad
Ludden, at times appears in the very same page or paragraph as references to the pro athletes
sponsored by Eddie Bauer under FIRST ASCENT, creating immediate consumer confusion as to
an affiliation or sponsorship between First Descents and Eddie Bauer. See Exhibit C hereto
(where First Descents and Eddie Bauer both appear on the website and schedule of events for
Outside in Aspen, a joint project of Outside Magazine and Aspen Chamber Resort Association,

noting both entities as sponsors and participants).

10
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46. In June 2010 and 2011 at the Teva Mountain Games in Vail, Colorado, numerous
attendees and participants made comments to First Descents’ teams who were wearing “Team
FIRST DESCENTS” tee shirts indicating their beliefs of a connection or affiliation between
First Descent’s team wearing the Team FIRST DESCENTS shirts and Eddie Bauer.

47.  Actual confusion among consumers who believe that Eddie Bauer is a sponsor of
or affiliated with First Descents has been on going. Despite First Descents’ protestations to
Defendants, Eddie Bauer has continued to free-ride on the goodwill that First Descents has built
in its charitable activities and outdoor adventure community through its FIRST DESCENTS"
camps. Indeed, consumers have contacted First Descents and asked why Eddie Bauer has put
“your name” on “their apparel.”

48. As another example of consumer confusion, on August 3, 2011, Brad Ludden and
a First Descents board member had finished a training ride in Leadville, Colorado for the
Leadville 100 bike race. Several fellow riders, one of whom was a cancer survivor familiar with
the First Descents organization, were in the same parking lot with the team FIRST DESCENTS
riders and noticed their FIRST DESCENTS bike jerseys. Another rider mistakenly associated
the team FIRST DESCENTS riders as running those “climbing camps with the clothing
company” rather than First Descents’ outdoor adventure camps for young adult cancer
Survivors.

49.  The parties advertise and promote their respective goods and services in the same
publications, at the same venues, and at the same industry events. The parties’ respective
sponsored teams compete under the marks FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENTS at the same
outdoor events. For example, advertising contained in recent 2010 and 2011 issues of Outside
Magazine, a leading national publication, demonstrates that both Eddie Bauer and First Descents

both engage in advertising and promotion using the marks FIRST ASCENT, FIRST DESCENT
11
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and FIRST DESCENTS and that they often appear on the very same page as sponsors of events.
See Exhibit D hereto (OUTSIDE magazine June 2011 “Weekend-Warrior Alert” and December
2010 ads).

50.  Defendant’s conduct as described herein, including its infringing use in interstate
commerce and registration of the confusingly similar FIRST DESCENT and FIRST ASCENT
marks (“Defendant’s Conduct™) is subsequent to First Descents’ use of its FIRST DESCENTS®
Mark.

51.  Defendant’s Conduct has caused consumer confusion and continues to cause
consumer confusion, in violation of First Descents’ prior and valuable trademark rights.

52. Defendant’s Conduct has damaged First Descents by creating an erroneous
impression of an affiliation or sponsorship between Eddie Bauer and First Descents, and has
impaired its ability to attract actual corporate sponsors and partners that is necessary to raise
funding for the outdoor adventure cancer camp experiences and increase the awareness of the
FIRST DESCENTS® programs.

53.  Defendant’s Conduct, despite First Descents’ objections, continues to damage
First Descents by impairing its fund raising ability by creating the erroneous impression that the
FIRST DESCENTS fund raising sport teams are sponsored by Eddie Bauer, and not independent
teams that seek to raise funds for the camps from members of the public whose financial support
of the cancer camp efforts is critical to its continued success. [FIRST DESCENTS team fund
raising efforts are shown on its website at http://teamfd.firstdescents.org/teamdirectory.aspx].

54.  Defendant’s Conduct, despite First Descents’ objections, continues to damage
First Descents by creating the potential for reverse confusion in that consumers would believe
that Eddie Bauer is the senior user of the FIRST DESCENTS® Mark and that First Descents is a

junior user, an infringer, and a competing commercial entity rather than the long time founder

12
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and operator of outdoor camps that provide young adult cancer survivors with challenging and
therapeutic outdoor experiences.

55.  Defendant’s Conduct, despite First Descents’ objections, continues to damage
First Descents by impairing the ability of First Descents to raise funds for use in its charitable

programs by sales of branded FIRST DESCENTS apparel.

COUNT1
(Infringement of Registered Trademark Under 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1) )

56.  First Descents hereby re-alleges and incorporates by this reference the preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

57. This is a claim for infringement of the federally registered FIRST DESCENTS®
Mark, as depicted in the attached Exhibit A. Defendant’s Conduct as alleged herein constitutes a
willful and knowing attempt to trade on the goodwill which First Descents owns and has
developed in the FIRST DESCENTS" Mark.

58. Defendant’s Conduct is likely to cause confusion, or to cause mistake, or to
deceive the purchasing public and others, leading them to mistakenly believe that Defendant’s
good and services are authorized by Plaintiff or that Plaintiff’s goods and services are authorized
by Eddie Bauer.

59. Defendant’s Conduct is likely to cause confusion, or to cause mistake, or to
deceive the purchasing public and others, leading them to mistakenly believe that Defendant’s
goods are those of First Descents, or vice versa, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1).

60.  Defendant’s Conduct has caused and, unless restrained and enjoined by this
Court, will continue to cause irreparable harm, damage, and injury to First Descents as described

herein.

13



Case 1:11-cv-02051-CMA-MEH Document 6 Filed 08/10/11 USDC Colorado Page 14 of 19

61.  First Descents has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT 11
(Unfair Competition Under 15 U.S.C. § 1125 (a))

62.  First Descents hereby re-alleges and incorporates by this reference the preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

63. Defendant’s Conduct as alleged herein is likely to cause confusion, mistake, or
deception as to origin, sponsorship, or approval of its goods sold and services provided under the
infringing FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT marks, and create consumer confusion as to
the source of such goods and services, in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1125(a). Defendant’s Conduct constitutes a willful and knowing attempt to trade on the
goodwill which First Descents has developed in its FIRST DESCENTS® Mark, and violates
First Descents trademark rights in its FIRST DESCENTS mark.

64. As a result of Defendant’s Conduct, Defendant has caused First Descents
irreparable harm and injury and will continue to do so unless Defendant is restrained and
enjoined by this Court from further violation of First Descents’ rights.

65.  First Descents has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT II1
(Trademark Infringement Under the Common Law)

66.  First Descents hereby re-alleges and incorporates by this reference the preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

67.  Defendant’s Conduct as alleged herein is likely to cause confusion, or to cause
mistake, or to deceive the purchasing public and others, whereby they would be led to
mistakenly believe that Defendant is affiliated with, related to, sponsored by, or connected with

First Descents, in violation of the common law of the state of Colorado

14
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68.  Defendant’s Conduct is thereby likely to confuse and deceive members of the
purchasing public as to the source of the First Descents’ branded apparel as a result of
Defendant’s use of the infringing FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT marks with similar
apparel.

69. Defendant’s Conduct also constitutes intentional, willful, and reckless disregard
of First Descents’ rights by Defendant and an attempt to trade on the goodwill which First
Descents has developed, all to the damage of First Descents.

70. As a result of Defendant’s Conduct, Defendant has caused and, unless restrained

and enjoined by this Court, will continue to cause irreparable harm, damage, and injury to First

Descents.
71.  First Descents has no adequate remedy at law.
COUNT IV
(Unfair Competition Under the Common Law)
72.  First Descents hereby re-alleges and incorporates by this reference the preceding

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

73.  Defendant’s Conduct as alleged herein constitutes misappropriation of valuable
property rights of First Descents and trading on the goodwill symbolized by FIRST
DESCENTS® Mark, and is thereby likely to confuse and deceive members of the purchasing
public as to the source of the First Descents’ goods and services as a result of Defendant’s use of
the infringing FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT marks. By virtue of Defendant’s
Conduct, Defendant has engaged in unfair competition in violation of the common law of the

state of Colorado.
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74. Defendant’s Conduct also constitutes intentional, willful, and reckless disregard
of First Descents’ rights by Defendant and an attempt to trade on the goodwill which First
Descents has developed, all to the damage of First Descents.

75. As a result of Defendant’s Conduct, Defendant has caused and, unless restrained
and enjoined by this Court, will continue to cause irreparable harm, damage, and injury to First
Descents.

76.  First Descents has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT YV
(Claim for Cancellation of U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3.970.936 and 3.974.941)

77. First Descents hereby re-alleges and incorporates by this reference the preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

78. This is a claim for cancellation of U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3,970,936 and
3,974,941.

79. First Descents owns U.S. Reg. No. 2,695,260 for the mark FIRST DESCENTS®
and U.S. trademark application serial no. 77/576914 for the mark FIRST DESCENTS.

80. First Descents began using its mark FIRST DESCENTS with apparel as early as
2001.

81. Defendant Eddie Bauer Licensing Services, LLC is listed as the owner of U.S.
Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3,970,936 3,974,941 on the records of the USPTO.

82. Defendant’s use of the FIRST ASCENT and FIRST DESCENT marks was at

least seven years after First Descent’s use of FIRST DESCENTS.
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83.  As alleged herein, Defendant’s use of the FIRST ASCENT and FIRST
DESCENT marks create consumer confusion and a false connection, association or affiliation
with First Descents, in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1114(1) and 1125(a).

84.  As alleged herein, the FIRST DESCENT and FIRST ASCENT marks used by
Defendant are confusingly similar to Plaintiff’s FIRST DESCENTS Mark, and the continued
registration of U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3,970,936 and 3,974,941 is inconsistent with First
Descents’ federal and common law rights in its FIRST DESCENTS Mark, and is damaging to
First Descents.

85. First Descents seeks cancellation of U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3,970,936 and
3,974,941 under 15 U.S.C. § 1119.

Relief Sought

WHEREFORE, First Descents asks this Honorable Court to:

A. Grant permanent injunctive relief enjoining Eddie Bauer and any principals,
agents, servants, employees, successors, and assigns of Defendant and all those in privity,
concert, or participation with such Defendant from:

(1) imitating, copying, duplicating, or otherwise making any use of the FIRST
DESCENTS mark or any mark confusingly similar to the FIRST DESCENTS mark;

(i1) manufacturing, producing, distributing, circulating, selling, or otherwise
creating goods which bears any copy or colorable imitation of the FIRST DESCENTS mark;

(iil)  using any unauthorized copy or colorable imitation of the FIRST
DESCENTS mark in such fashion as is likely to relate or connect Eddie Bauer with First
Descents;

(iv)  using any false designation of origin or false description which can or is

likely to lead the trade or public, or individual members thereof, to believe mistakenly that any
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goods or service advertised, promoted, offered, or sold by Defendant is sponsored, endorsed,
connected with, approved, or authorized by First Descents;

(V) causing likelihood of confusion or injury to First Descents’ business
reputation and to the distinctiveness of the FIRST DESCENTS mark by unauthorized use of a
confusingly similar mark;

(vi) engaging in any other activity constituting unfair competition or
infringement of the FIRST DESCENTS mark or First Descents’ rights in, or to use, or to exploit
the same;

(vii)  assisting, aiding or abetting another person or business entity in engaging
or performing any of the activities enumerated in subparagraphs (i) through (vi) above.

B. Find that Defendant has infringed Plaintiff’s FIRST DESCENTS mark in
violation of federal law and has damaged First Descents’ goodwill by its conduct.

C. Find that Defendant has unfairly competed with First Descents by the acts
complained of herein in violation of federal law.

D. Find that the acts of Defendant constitute trademark infringement in violation of
the common law of the state of Colorado.

E. Find that the acts of Defendant constitute unfair competition in violation of the
common law of the state of Colorado.

F. Find each Defendant jointly and severally liable, and award to First Descents
monetary damages in an amount to be fixed by the Court in its discretion as just, including all of
each Defendant’s profits or gains of any kind resulting from its willful infringement and/or acts
of unfair competition, said amount to be trebled, and exemplary damages in view of the

intentional nature of the acts complained of herein, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117.
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G. Order the cancellation of U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,934,798 3,970,936 and 3,974,941

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1119.

H. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs, and award such fees under 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117 due to the exceptional nature of this case.

L Award to First Descents exemplary damages in view of the intentional, willful,

wanton and reckless disregard of its rights by Defendant.

J. Grant to First Descents such other and further relief as the Court may deem just,

proper, and equitable under the circumstances.

PLAINTIFFS DEMAND A TRIAL BY JURY ON ALL ISSUES SO TRIABLE.

Respectfully submitted this 10" day of August, 2011.

By: s/ Gayle L. Strong
Gayle L. Strong
GREENBERG TRAURIG LLP
1200 Seventeenth Street, Suite 2400
Denver, CO 80202
(303) 572-6500
strongg@gtlaw.com
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EXHIBIT A



Int. ClL: 41
Prior U.S. Cls.: 100, 101 and 107

Reg. No. 2,695,260
United States Patent and Trademark Office  Repistered Mar. 11, 2003

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

First Descents

I'[EI};{[J’KL JOEL W, (UNITED STATES INDIVI- FIRST USE & 5-200%; IN COMMERCH 8-3-2001.

)
POST OFFICE BOX 1430
VAIL, €O 81658 SER. NO. 76-379,426, FILED 3-6-2002.
FOR: SPORT CAMP, NAMELY, A MOTIVATION-

AL KAYAK CAMP FOR PEOPLE WITH CANCER,
IN CLASS 41 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 107). GWEN $TOKOLS, EXAMINING ATTORNEY







EXHIBIT B






EXHIBIT C-1















EXHIBIT C-2









EXHIBIT D






Founded by professional kayaker, Brad Ludden, First Descents offers
young adults with cancer a FREE week-long outdoor adventure as
a form of therapy to heal the psychosocial scarring left behind after

their diagnosis. In one week on the water or on the rock, participants

transcend their diagnosis and reclaim their lives from cancer.

volunteer, donate, participate, attend: FirstDescents.org









